
Agenda - Y Pwyllgor Cyllid
Lleoliad:
Ystafell Bwyllgora 3 - Senedd
Dyddiad: Dydd Iau, 29 Medi 2016
Amser: 09.00

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth cysylltwch a:
Bethan Davies
Clerc y Pwyllgor
0300 200 6372 
SeneddCyllid@cynulliad.cymru

1 09.00 - 09.15 - Rhag-gyfarfod anffurfiol
 

2 Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau, dirprwyon a datgan buddiannau
(09.15)  

3 Papur(au) i'w nodi
(09.15) (Tudalennau 1 - 3) 

4 Y Bil Treth Trafodiadau Tir a Gwrthweithio Osgoi Trethi 
Datganoledig (Cymru):  Sesiwn dystiolaeth gyda Llywodraeth yr 
Alban (Fideogynhadledd)
(9.15-10.00) (Tudalennau 4 - 12) 

Alistair Brown, Cyfarwyddwr Strategaeth Ariannol, Llywodraeth yr Alban

5 Y Bil Treth Trafodiadau Tir a Gwrthweithio Osgoi Trethi 
Datganoledig (Cymru):  Sesiwn dystiolaeth gyda'r Gymdeithas Tir a 
Busnesau Cefn Gwlad
(10.00-10.45) (Tudalennau 13 - 19) 

Louise Speke, Prif Gynghorydd Treth, y Gymdeithas Tir a Busnesau Cefn Gwlad

10.45-11.00 - Egwyl 

------------------------Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus ------------------------



6 Y Bil Treth Trafodiadau Tir a Gwrthweithio Osgoi Trethi 
Datganoledig (Cymru):  Sesiwn dystiolaeth gyda'r Gofrestrfa Tir
(11.00-11.45) (Tudalennau 20 - 32) 

Joy Bailey, Cofrestrydd Tir Cynorthwyol, y Gofrestrfa Tir
Pascal Lalande, Rheolwr Gweithrediadau Canolog, y Gofrestrfa Tir

Papur 1 - Y Gofrestrfa Tir: tystiolaeth ysgrifenedig

7 Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42 i benderfynu gwahardd y 
cyhoedd o weddill y cyfarfod
(11.45)  

8 Y Bil Treth Trafodiadau Tir a Gwrthweithio Osgoi Trethi 
Datganoledig (Cymru):  Trafod y dystiolaeth
(11.45-12.00)  

9 Trafod y Bil Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus (Cymru) 
Drafft
(12.00-12.30) (Tudalennau 33 - 36) 

Papur 2 - Trafod y Bil Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus (Cymru) Drafft

10 Llythyr gan Brif Weithredwr a Chlerc Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru 
at y Cadeirydd - Adroddiad ar Berfformiad Corfforaethol Comisiwn 
y Cynulliad, Ebrill 2015 - Mawrth 2016
(12.30-12.45) (Tudalennau 37 - 64) 

Papur 3 - Perfformiad Corfforaethol Comisiwn y Cynulliad, Ebrill 2015 - Mawrth 
2016



12.45-13.15 - Egwyl 

11 Y Bil Treth Trafodiadau Tir a Gwrthweithio Osgoi Trethi 
Datganoledig (Cymru):  Digwyddiad rhanddeiliaid (Canolfan 
Gelfyddydau'r Eglwys Norwyaidd)
(13.15-16.00)  



Cofnodion cryno - Y Pwyllgor Cyllid
Lleoliad:

Ystafell Bwyllgora 2 - y Senedd

Dyddiad: Dydd Mercher, 21 Medi 2016

Amser: 09.15 - 12.26

Gellir gwylio’r cyfarfod ar Senedd TV yn:
http://senedd.tv/cy/3718

Yn bresennol

Categori Enwau

Aelodau’r Cynulliad:

Simon Thomas AC (Cadeirydd)

Mike Hedges AC

Eluned Morgan AC

David Rees AC

Steffan Lewis AC

Nick Ramsay AC

Mark Reckless AC

Tystion:

Mark Drakeford AC, Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Gyllid a 
Llywodraeth Leol

Andrew Hewitt, Llywodraeth Cymru

Gareth McMahon, Llywodraeth Cymru

Steve O'Donoghue, Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru

Kevin Thomas, Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru

Nicola Evans, Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru

Matthew Hockridge, Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru

Staff y Pwyllgor:
Bethan Davies (Clerc)

Catherine Hunt (Ail Glerc)

Tudalen y pecyn 1

Eitem 3

http://senedd.tv/


Georgina Owen (Dirprwy Glerc)

Martin Jennings (Ymchwilydd)

Christian Tipples (Ymchwilydd)

Joanest Varney-Jackson (Cynghorydd Cyfreithiol)

Lakshmi Narain (Cynghorwr Technegol)

2 Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau, dirprwyon a datgan buddiannau 

2.1 Croesawodd y Cadeirydd yr Aelodau i’r cyfarfod.

3 Papurau i’w nodi 

3.1 Cafodd y papurau eu nodi.

4 Y Bil Treth Trafodiadau Tir a Gwrthweithio Osgoi Trethi Datganoledig 
(Cymru):  Sesiwn dystiolaeth 1 

4.1 Bu'r Pwyllgor yn craffu ar Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Gyllid a Llywodraeth Leol 
mewn perthynas â'r Bil Treth Trafodiadau Tir a Gwrthweithio Osgoi Trethi Datganoledig 
(Cymru).

4.2 Cytunodd yr Ysgrifennydd Cabinet i ddarparu nodyn yn esbonio pam ei fod o'r farn 
bod gosod cosb am fethu â dychwelyd ffurflen dreth o fewn 12 mis i'r dyddiad ffeilio o 
95 y cant o'r dreth sy'n ddyledus yn gymesur mewn perthynas â'r Confensiwn 
Ewropeaidd ar Hawliau Dynol a Rhyddid Sylfaenol.

5 Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42 i benderfynu gwahardd y cyhoedd o 
weddill y cyfarfod 

5.1 Derbyniwyd y cynnig.

Tudalen y pecyn 2



6 Y Bil Treth Trafodiadau Tir a Gwrthweithio Osgoi Trethi Datganoledig 
(Cymru):  Ystyried y dystiolaeth 

6.1 Ystyriodd y Pwyllgor y dystiolaeth a ddaeth i law.

7 Y diweddaraf am weithdrefnau'r gyllideb o ystyried trethi datganoledig 

7.1 Nododd y Pwyllgor y papur.

8 Llythyr gan y Pwyllgor Busnes ynglŷn â'r Bil Treth Gwarediadau 
Tirlenwi 

8.1 Nododd y Pwyllgor yr ohebiaeth a chytunodd i ysgrifennu at y Pwyllgor Busnes.

9 Cyflwyno Deddf Archwilio Cyhoeddus (Cymru) 2013 

9.1 Rhoddodd Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru gyflwyniad i'r Aelodau ar Ddeddf Archwilio 
Cyhoeddus (Cymru) 2013.

Tudalen y pecyn 3



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 4

Eitem 4 Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 13

Eitem 5Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



Y Pwyllgor Cyllid | Finance Committee
FIN(5)-06-16 P1

1 of 5 

Land Transaction Tax and Anti-
avoidance of Devolved Taxes 
(Wales) Bill

Written evidence to the Finance Committee, 
National Assembly for Wales

21 September 2016

Tudalen y pecyn 20

Eitem 6



2 of 5 

Land Transaction Tax and Anti-avoidance of Devolved Taxes (Wales) Bill

Written evidence from HM Land Registry

Land Registry’s main concern is that the Land Transaction Tax should be essentially similar 
in its operation as Stamp Duty Land Tax. This would make it easier for both conveyancers 
and the Land Registry to comply with their obligations under the legislation of both England 
and Wales. This in turn helps the English and Welsh tax authorities to ensure that any tax 
properly due is paid.

HM Land Registry maintains and develops the register of freehold and leasehold land (and 
other interests in land) in England and Wales. Under section 79 of the Finance Act 2003 
(which we shall refer to as the Finance Act) Land Registry cannot register a notifiable 
transaction unless the applicant produces with the application a certificate as to compliance 
with the Stamp Duty Land Tax requirements of the Finance Act, (or such information about 
compliance as the Commissioners for HM Revenue and Customs specify in regulations). 

We note that the Land Transaction Tax and Anti-avoidance of Devolved Taxes (Wales) Bill 
(which we shall refer to as the LTT Bill) includes a similar provision at section 58. We are 
therefore concerned that LTT and SDLT should work in the same way, to alleviate additional 
burdens and complexity for both conveyancers and Land Registry caseworkers. This will 
help to ensure that land transactions are not registered in error, when LTT requirements 
have not been complied with.

Our particular areas of concern are—
1. That we can expect to receive a certificate of compliance in the same 

circumstances as we would expect to do so with SDLT, in particular in relation 
to—

a. Anti avoidance
b. Sub-sale relief

2. Certificate of compliance – digital options – in English – or other information
3. Cross border properties
4. Immediate changes to rates and bands without prior notice
5. Transitional provisions

1. Production of certificates of compliance
Most transactions are straightforward, and the need for a certificate (or not, for an exempt 
transaction) is clear. But reliefs have caused problems both for Land Registry and HMRC in 
the past, particularly in relation to sub-sales. Several tax avoidance schemes were devised, 
mainly based on a sub-sale where the ultimate transfer was also subject to another relief. 
So applicants claimed that no SDLT certificate was needed due to the combination of 
reliefs. Most of these claims were based on a misinterpretation of the provisions of the 
Finance Act, but nevertheless, they resulted in many applications for registration being 
delayed while we served notice of the applications on HMRC, and HMRC disputed them. 

Tudalen y pecyn 21



3 of 5 

Subsequently HMRC changed the Finance Act by the addition of Schedule 2A, to make it 
clearer when a relief must be claimed. Land Registry worked with HMRC for many months 
to find a solution that worked both for conveyancers, Land Registry and HMRC.

We believe that Schedule 1 of the LTT Bill largely follows Schedule 2A of the Finance Act. 
We have some concerns that Land Registry staff may not have the expertise to recognise 
what may be a tax avoidance arrangement under section 31 of the Bill, so we think it will be 
important to have links with staff at the Welsh Revenue Authority with whom we can liaise if 
necessary. We have done this successfully in the past in relation to the types of claim 
referred to above. 

Land Registry also has a data-sharing arrangement with HMRC, to assist with anti-
avoidance measures. If the Welsh Revenue Authority Land Transaction Tax return and 
collection system are separate, we expect that they would want a similar arrangement. 
There may be a small cost for setting up the separate service.

But we are as comfortable as we can be given that most reliefs will have to be claimed, so 
that an SDLT return will be issued. This means that in the vast majority of cases there will 
always be an SDLT return, so that Land Registry staff will not have to make judgements as 
to whether or not LTT obligations have been complied with. 

2. Certificates of compliance
Under SDLT legislation, the registrar can accept a certificate of compliance “or such 
information about compliance as the Commissioners for HMRC may specify in regulations”. 

That additional provision allows us to accept the submission receipt which is generated 
when customers apply electronically for an SDLT certificate, but it is not the actual 
certificate itself. However, the submission receipt contains all the information required to be 
in a certificate. The submission receipt is issued automatically by the HMRC system, but 
confirms that a customer has complied with the requirements to submit an SDLT return 
using the electronic facility offered by HMRC. This in turn allows the conveyancer to apply to 
register the transaction without delay. They do not have to wait for an HMRC officer to 
inspect the return and issue a formal certificate.

As both Land Registry and the tax authorities become more digital, we would prefer to be 
able to rely on digital tax submission receipts as far as possible. 

It might therefore be appropriate to include the same or similar wording in the LTT Bill so 
that we could agree with the WTA as to different types of evidence that could be accepted if 
LTT returns are lodged electronically.

3. Cross border properties 
Our recent detailed research has shown that there are many more cross border properties 
than we originally estimated. We found over 400 titles straddle the border or exist in both 
England and Wales to a sufficient extent to exclude mapping or other scale issues. Of 
these—  

Tudalen y pecyn 22



4 of 5 

 
 442 titles are freehold, 33 titles are leasehold and 10 titles are either cautions, 

rentcharges or unclassified (pending titles); 

 136 titles are residential, 47 titles are commercial, 32 titles are mixed use and the 
remaining are either general land registration, water, mines and minerals or other 
interests on land; 

 130 titles had a total of 141 transactions lodged against them (transfers, new 
leases and first registrations) in the last 5 financial years; 

I addition, 27.45% of the border length is identified as unregistered (not straddled nor 
adjoined by titles in the Welsh side) but, due to capturing methods or to titles being close to 
the border, significant limitations exist in that analysis. 

Section 9 of the Bill states that the consideration for the transaction is to be apportioned on 
a just and reasonable basis, but does not indicate how. An easy and accessible mechanism 
will be needed to determine and record the split in value for the purposes of LTT and SDLT. 
We can see that in practice this could cause delays and complexity for those properties 
affected. Land Registry will not be able to register a transaction until both certificates (or 
other evidence) are received. 

Is intended that the valuations of the respective parts of the property should be permanent 
(unless development or other factors alter the respective values), or will customers have to 
apply for an apportionment to be calculated each time they sell/buy? If permanent, where 
should the valuation be recorded? Should the percentage split in valuation be recorded on 
the register of each of these titles? If so, who will calculate it, and what will be the procedure 
for changing those values if any changes are made to the property? Also, what if the owner 
disputes the apportionment? No doubt the WRA is considering all these practical problems, 
but the Bill does not seem to make any provision for regulations to be made in this regard 
(except for the general power under section 71(1). These might not be matters for Land 
Registry, but we will inevitably be asked for guidance by our customers, and registration will 
be affected by them. 

4. Immediate changes to rates and bands without prior notice
Land Registry is used to dealing with sudden changes to SDLT made in the Budget, and will 
be able to do so for LTT. But immediate changes to the rates and bands without prior notice 
could cause problems if there was a sudden change to the minimum threshold for tax. This 
might mean that we would need evidence, for instance, of the date of exchange of contracts 
if transitional provisions were made. 

5. Transitional provisions
Land Registry (and conveyancers) will need guidance regarding transitional arrangements 
for transactions for which contracts are exchanged before the date that the Bill comes into 
force, but not completed until after that date. We could not see any reference to transitional 
arrangements in the Bill.

Tudalen y pecyn 23



5 of 5 

Any queries regarding this response can be directed to—

Joy Bailey

Assistant Land Registrar
Registration Legal Services
Trafalgar House, 1 Bedford Park, Croydon, CR0 2AQ

0300 006 7738

joy.bailey@landregistry.gsi.gov.uk

or

Pascal Lalande

Central Operations Manager
Operations Assurance and Risk
Trafalgar House, 1 Bedford Park, Croydon, CR0 2AQ

0300 006 7428

pascal.lalande@landregistry.gov.uk

Tudalen y pecyn 24

mailto:joy.bailey@landregistry.gsi.gov.uk
mailto:pascal.lalande@landregistry.gov.uk


Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 25

Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 33

Eitem 9Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 37

Eitem 10Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42


	Agenda
	3 Papur(au) i'w nodi
	4 Y Bil Treth Trafodiadau Tir a Gwrthweithio Osgoi Trethi Datganoledig (Cymru):  Sesiwn dystiolaeth gyda Llywodraeth yr Alban (Fideogynhadledd)
	5 Y Bil Treth Trafodiadau Tir a Gwrthweithio Osgoi Trethi Datganoledig (Cymru):  Sesiwn dystiolaeth gyda'r Gymdeithas Tir a Busnesau Cefn Gwlad
	6 Y Bil Treth Trafodiadau Tir a Gwrthweithio Osgoi Trethi Datganoledig (Cymru):  Sesiwn dystiolaeth gyda'r Gofrestrfa Tir
	Dogfen briffio gan y Gwasanaeth Ymchwil 3 - Y Gofrestrfa Tir

	9 Trafod y Bil Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus (Cymru) Drafft
	10 Llythyr gan Brif Weithredwr a Chlerc Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru at y Cadeirydd - Adroddiad ar Berfformiad Corfforaethol Comisiwn y Cynulliad, Ebrill 2015 - Mawrth 2016

